From: Gary Scott

To: Planning Commission

Subject: Widening of Laurel Road-Is it needed now?
Date: Monday, November 14, 2022 1:45:49 PM
Attachments: Laurel Road Study.pdf

Caution: This email originated from an external source. Be Suspicious of Attachments,
Links and Requests for Login Information

To the Members of the Board of Commissioners:

This email relates to the widening of Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda Boulevard,
and where it is currently placed on the road improvement priority list.

A number of traffic studies have been done over recent years where this segment of road was
included in the study. In each of those studies it was found that the current traffic volume on this
segment of road was well below the road’s traffic capacity. In no study was it found that the current
traffic volume was even more than 50% of the road’s capacity. The relevant traffic studies that | was
able to locate are as follows:

The Comprehensive Plan Amendment Traffic Analysis performed by Kimley Horn and dated
December 2019. That study found that the current traffic volume to capacity ratio for this segment
of road was .29.

The Northeast Venice Neighborhood Transportation Study performed by Kimley Horn and dated
July 2019. That study found that the current traffic volume to capacity ratio was .38.

The Nokomis Groves Traffic Impact Analysis performed by Kimley Horn and dated September
2022. That study found that the current traffic volume to capacity ratio was .46.

The Laurel Road Study performed by the Transportation Planning Division of Sarasota County and
dated September 2019. This report, which is attached, was prepared as a result of a request made
by the City Council on June 11, 2019. This study adopted data from a Traffic Impact Analysis
performed by Kimley Horn in May 2019. The Laurel Road Study concluded that traffic on Laurel
Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda will exceed its capacity and will need to be widened
between 2039 and 2040. (See pg. 5 of Study)

Undoubtedly at some point in the future this segment of Laurel Road will need to be widened from
two lanes to four lanes but | am not convinced that that time has arrived. The road is currently being
traveled at a volume well below its capacity, and at least one study concluded that its capacity will
not be exceeded for over 15 years.

Perhaps there are other road repair projects that are deserving of a priority higher than this segment
of Laurel Road at this time.  Thank you.

Gary Scott . 156 Pesaro Drive, North Venice. 307-630-3624


mailto:grscott520@gmail.com
mailto:PlanningCommission@venicefl.gov
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Background

On June 11, 2019 at the City of Venice City Council meeting, a motion directing City of Venice
staff to contact developer, Pat Neal, and inquire on the costs with city, state, federal, and county
partnerships to widen Laurel Road from two to four lanes was unanimously passed. Subsequent
to the city’s approved motion, county staff was asked to investigate the need to widen Laurel
Road to its Future Thoroughfare Plan designation as a four-lane major arterial.

There have been several applications approved by the City of Venice that will increase the
density and intensity of development along Laurel Road. These projects include Toscana Isles,
Portofino, Milano PUD, SIMR PUD, Woods at Venice, Plaza Venezia, GCCF, Murphy Oaks,
and SMH Venice. In addition to the background growth rate, these vested projects will impact
the traffic volume on Laurel Road.

Roadway Study Area

The section of Laurel Road that was evaluated is located east of 1-75 and is highlighted in
Figure 1.

Figure 1 — Study Area

b d.“:o. Roadway Study

=<

Page 2





2

[
SaraSota County

Laurel Road Study
Current Roadway Conditions

Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda Boulevard currently exists as a two-lane
roadway with a pavement width of 28 feet. County maintenance records shows the pavement is
in satisfactory condition. The two lanes are each 12 feet wide with a four-foot wide bike lane on
the north side that runs the length of the roadway segment. There is a five-foot concrete
sidewalk on the north side of the roadway. An image of this section of Laurel Road is presented
in Figure 2.

Figure 2 — Laurel Road

A traffic count was taken on September 12, 2018 along this section of roadway that measured an
Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) of 6,305. This represents a Design Hourly VVolume
(DHV) of 687 and a Level of Service (LOS) of C. The minimum adopted standard for this
section of roadway is LOS D with a service volume of 1,440. This data is presented in Table 1
along with data for Laurel Road from 1-75 to Knights Trail Road.

Table 1 — 2018 Level of Service

. - .. Minimum Adopted
Road Segment Attributes Existing Traffic Conditions Standards
. #of | Segment Traffic Counts Service
Roadway Narme Limits Lanes | Length | Date | AADT | DHV | LOS| LOS | Volume
Laurel Road 1-75 Knights Trail 4 0.50 9/12/2018 | 19,926 | 2,052 | C D 3,401
Laurel Road Knights Trail Jacaranda 2 1.44 9/12/2018 6,305 687 C D 1,440
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Rustic Road Development

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was performed in May 2019 by Kimley-Horn and Associates,
Inc., to support a rezone petition for the Rustic Road Development in the City of Venice. This
analysis evaluated the vehicle trips anticipated to be generated by the proposed site development,
traffic volume from vested projects near the site and background traffic. Traffic Analysis Zones
(TAZ) were updated with project details and future traffic conditions and processed in the FDOT
District One FSUTMS Regional Planning Model. Laurel Road was included within the
FSUTMS model analysis and AADT volumes were computed along segments of this road. An
AADT of 14,893 for the year 2040 was calculated for Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to
Jacaranda Boulevard (Figure 3).

Figure 3 - FSUTMS 2040 Model AADT Output
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Calculations

Using a K factor of 0.104 for Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda Boulevard, the
2040 AADT of 14,893 represents a DHV of 1,549. This amount is greater than the minimum
adopted service volume of 1,440 and the roadway will operate at LOS F.

The 2040 AADT value projected from the Rustic Road development analysis represents an
annualized growth rate of 4.0% from 2018 to 2040. Using this growth rate for Laurel Road, the
DHV will reach 1,494 in 2039. At that time, Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda
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Boulevard will exceed the minimum adopted standard and operate at LOS F. Projected LOS
values for future years are shown in Table 2.

Table 2 — Projected LOS Values

Road Segment Existing Traffic Conditions Future Traffic Conditions

Roadway Name Limits # of 2018 Growth 2036 2037 2039

Lanes | DHV LOS Rate DHV | LOS | DHV | LOS | DHV | LOS

Laurel Road Knights Trail | Jacaranda| 2 687 C 4.00% | 1,328 C 1,382 D 1,494 F

Additional Concerns

The Rustic Road Development TIA identified a need to improve Laurel Road from I-75 to
Knights Trail Road from four lanes to six lanes because of future traffic conditions (Rustic Road
Development report, May 2019, Page 8). According to the model projections in the TIA, at an
annualized growth rate of 4.0% this section of roadway will begin operating at LOS F in 2035
and need to be increased from four to six lanes or implement Traffic Systems Management and
Operation (TSMO) strategies to achieve the minimum adopted traffic standard.

Conclusions/Recommendations

The Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., Traffic Impact Analysis for the Rustic Road
Development (May 2019) was referenced because it incorporated the vested projects near Laurel
Road in the socio-economic (SE) data for the FSUTMS model. The model showed a growth rate
of 4.0% for Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda Boulevard. At this growth rate
Laurel Road will reach LOS F in 2039 with two lanes.

Tindale Oliver developed SE data for a traffic demand model analysis of Dove Avenue and
Clark Road in October 2018. This model included Laurel Road and showed a growth rate of
3.54% for Laurel Road from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda Boulevard. Following this growth
rate Laurel Road will reach LOS F in 2040 with two lanes.

Based on the Kimley-Horn and Tindale Oliver models referenced for this study, Laurel Road
from Knights Trail Road to Jacaranda Boulevard will need to be increased from 2 to 4 lanes
between 2039 and 2040 or implement TSMO strategies in order to achieve the minimum adopted
level of service standard established for this section of roadway.

The adjacent section of Laurel Road from I-75 to Knights Trail Road currently has 4 lanes, is
operating at LOS C, and is designated as a 4-lane major arterial in the future thoroughfare plan.
According to the Kimley-Horn model this section of roadway will operate at LOS F in 2035.
The Tindale Oliver model showed this section of roadway operating at LOS F in 2037. Based on
these models, Laurel Road from I-75 to Knights Trail Road will need to be increased from 4 to 6
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lanes between 2035 and 2037 or implement TSMO strategies in order to achieve the minimum
adopted level of service standard established for this section of roadway. A Comprehensive Plan
Amendment, however, will be needed to change Laurel Road’s designation from a 4-lane major
arterial to a 6-lane major arterial.
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From: Roger Effron

To: Planning Commission

Cc: Kelly Michaels

Subject: Public Comments for PC agenda item
Date: Sunday, November 13, 2022 9:15:57 AM

Caution: This email originated from an external source. Be Suspicious of Attachments,
Links and Requests for Login Information

To: Members of the City of Venice Planning Commission

This communication addresses your agenda item, “ Annual Update of the Capital Improvement
Schedule,” presented by Roger Clark, Director, Planning and Zoning.

The primary reason for the letter is to acknowledge and support a proposed change to the City's
CIS that currently have Pinebrook/E. Venice Intersection Improvements as Number 1 and Laurel
Road Widening as Number 2 on the list. We all believe that the Laurel Rd Widening should be
the Number 1 priority for the City with the Pinebrook/E.Venice interchange Number 2.

We also support the changes proposed by the Central Venice Coalition in April 1922 to redesign
Pinebrook Road from Laurel Road to Venice Ave providing traffic mitigation measures and leaving it
as a two-lane road rather than widening it to four lanes.

The three organizations noted below are in full support of this proposed changes.
Thank you for your consideration and we look forward to your approval of this request.
Lew Perry

Venetian Golf and River Club (VGRC) Property Owners Association

Roger Effron,

President, VGRC Community Association

Dick Longo

Steering Committee Member, Central Venice Coalition


mailto:rceffron@gmail.com
mailto:PlanningCommission@venicefl.gov
mailto:kmichaels@venicefl.gov

From: Ruth Cordner

To: Planning Commission
Subject: Widening of Laurel Road-what is the urgency?
Date: Tuesday, November 15, 2022 8:48:26 AM

Caution: This email originated from an external source. Be Suspicious of Attachments, Links and
Requests for Login Information

Good Morning

I see on today's agenda the Laurel Road widening project is ranked as the 2nd highest priority of 20
projects.

The Nokomis Groves Traffic Impact Analysis performed by Kimley Horn and dated September 2022,
indicates the current traffic volume to capacity ratio was .46.

It is concerning that the Commission has this project ranked so high on the agenda. In the spirit of
transparency, please respond with an explanation/rationale for this unusual ranking?

Thank you in advance for your time and consideration. I look forward to hearing from you.
Best Regards,

Ruth Cordner
Venice City Resident


mailto:ruth.cordner@gmail.com
mailto:PlanningCommission@venicefl.gov

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEDULE FISCAL YEARS 2023 - 2027

Table 7A : Transportation - Roadway Improvements
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